LOUISIANA BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE BOARD MEETING August 1, 2019

Minutes

I. CALL TO ORDER

Board President, Dr. James R. Corley, called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

II. ROLL CALL –

Roll call was taken by Board Secretary-Treasurer, Dr. Joseph Bondurant, Jr., with the following results:

Those present:

James R. Corley, DVM

Keri A. Cataldo, DVM

Joseph Bondurant, Jr.,, DVM

Board President

Board Vice President

Board Secretary-Treasurer

Alfred G. Stevens, DVM Board Member

Stephen H. Vogt Board General Counsel Wendy D. Parrish Board Executive Director

Absent:

William H. Green, DVM Board Member

Guests: None.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Board Minutes April 4, 2019

The Board reviewed the minutes from June 6, 2019. Motion was made to accept the minutes as presented by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, and passed unanimously by voice vote.

IV. FINANCIAL MATTERS AND CONTRACTS

- A. Financial Reports Dr. Bondurant and Ms. Parrish presented the financial reports for the months of May and June 2019 for review. The Annual Financial Report will be presented and discussed at the October 2019 Board meeting. Following discussion, motion was made by Dr. Stevens to accept the financial reports as presented, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, and passed unanimously by voice vote.
- **B.** Website Online Programming Update, Payment Vendors Ms. Parrish presented updated information on renewal online programming which was operational on July 15, 2019. The remaining balance for the programming and design will be paid which came slightly under budgeted amount. No action was taken on this item.
- C. Office Lease Agreement—Ms. Parrish toured potential space with the Department of Agriculture facility for possible move in July 2020. The designated space for rent was not available to be viewed, and Dr. Stevens and Ms. Parrish were requested to

schedule a tour at the earliest to see the proposed space before further decision can be made. They are to report their findings at the October 2019 meeting.

V. DVM ISSUES

Motion was made by Dr. Cataldo to go into executive session to discuss confidential matters regarding licensees and applicants not subject to public disclosure as per the law, seconded by Dr. Bondurant, and passed unanimously by voice vote.

Upon conclusion of executive session, motion was made to return to regular session by Dr. Cataldo, seconded by Dr. Stevens, and approved unanimously by voice vote.

- A. Roland Pilat, DVM Request for Status Change, Exemption of CE After review of the documents submitted by Dr. Pilat, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve status change to Inactive Retired and waiver of 20 CE requirements for renewal year 2019-2020. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- B. Grace K. Savoie, DVM Request for Inactive Retired Status, Exemption of CE Following review of the documentation provided by Dr. Savoie, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve Inactive Retired Status for Renewal Year 2019-2020 pending submission of 20 approved CE credits per Rule 405 C 2 as the licensee is under 65 years of age. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- C. Donald C. Smith, Jr., DVM Request for Status Change, Exemption of CE After review of the documents submitted by Dr. Smith, motion was made by Dr. Bondurant, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve status change to Inactive Retired and waiver of 20 CE requirements for renewal year 2019-2020. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

VI. DVM APPLICANT ISSUES

- A. Alexis Mia Livaccari, DVM Reconsider Request Waiver of Retake of National Examination and Preceptorship Requirement 2014 graduate of LSU School of Veterinary Medicine, licensed in Florida. Following review of the additional documentation submitted by Dr. Livaccari, motion was made by Dr Stevens, seconded by Dr. Bondurant, to approve waiver of retake of the national examination and preceptorship requirements as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- B. Brian Christopher Hurley, DVM Request Waiver of Retake of National Examination and Preceptorship Requirement –1994 graduate of University of Florida, licensed in numerous other states. Following review of documents submitted by Dr. Hurley, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve waiver of retake of the national examination and preceptorship requirements as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application,

and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

- C. Clarisa Ruth Krueger, DVM Request Waiver of Retake of National Examination and Preceptorship Requirement –2009 graduate of Texas A&M University College of Veterinary Medicine, currently holds a LA Faculty license, previously licensed in Texas and Colorado. Following review of documents submitted by Dr. Krueger, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve waiver of retake of the national examination and preceptorship requirements as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- D. Kendra Ann Eginton, DVM Request for Waiver of Preceptorship Requirement 2017 graduate of St. George's University School of Veterinary Medicine, licensed in Ohio. Following review of the documentation submitted Dr. Eginton, motion was made by Dr. Bondurant, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve waiver of the preceptorship requirement as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- E. Hannah Renee Ghindea, DVM Request for Waiver of Preceptorship Requirement 2018 graduate of LSU School of Veterinary Medicine, licensed in Florida. Following review of the documentation submitted Dr. Ghindea, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve waiver of the preceptorship requirement as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- F. Jeffrey Stephen Haney, DVM Request for Waiver of Preceptorship Requirement 2017 graduate of Auburn University, licensed in Tennessee. Following review of the documentation submitted Dr. Haney, motion was made by Dr. Bondurant, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, to approve waiver of the preceptorship requirement as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.
- G. Linde Shae Saunders, DVM Request for Waiver of Preceptorship Requirement 2017 graduate of St. George's University School of Veterinary Medicine, licensed in Alabama, Florida and Tennessee. Following review of the documentation submitted Dr. Saunders, motion was made by Dr. Cataldo, seconded by Dr.Bondurant, to approve waiver of the preceptorship requirement as the documents provided meet the criteria of full-time clinical veterinary practice for the required period of time immediately prior to application, and licensure in good standing in another jurisdiction. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

VII. RVT/CAET/RED ISSUES

A. Dominque Brooke Williams, RVT Applicant – After review of the application documentation of Ms. Williams, as well as information received by Board legal counsel, motion was made by Dr. Stevens, seconded by Dr. Bondurant, to approve application for Ms. Williams. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

VIII. POLICY, PROCEDURE, AND RULES

A. General Update.

1. No action taken.

B. Policy and Procedure.

1. No action taken.

C. Practice Act, Rules/Related Matters/Declaratory Statements.

1. No action taken.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

A. New Licenses and Certificates Issued:

Wall certificates were presented for signature for the following licenses/certificates issued since the previous Board meeting:

$\overline{\mathbf{DVM}}$		
3663	Romano	Dana Marie
3664	Anderson	Jason Morgan
3665	King	Jessica Brackin
3666	Cutler	Daniel Caleb
3667	Gardner	Mary A.
3668	LeBoeuf	Michaela Lynn
3669	Frese	Daniel Adam
3670	Barber	Lillian Claire
3671	Collins	Jenna Shea
3672	Doyle	Cody Phillip
3673	Landry	Anna Genevieve
3674	Scroggs	Joseph Michael
3675	Fontenot	Erica Lloyd
3676	Linn	Mallory Christine
3677	Joubert	Renee Denis
3678	Frischer	Robert Scott
3679	Owens	Lindsey Elizabeth
3680	Bordelon Umbach	Natalie
3681	Watkins	Duane Paul
3682	Wheeler	Courtney Starring

Faculty DVM

Faculty 163	York-Giger	Whitney Dawn
Faculty 164	Doherty	Thomas John
Faculty 165	Seddighi	Mohammad Reza
Faculty 166	Cummings	Charles O'Brien
Faculty 167	Cashin	Kaitlyn Laurel

Faculty 168	Harris	Elizabeth Ann
Faculty 169	Mason	Alexandra Kim
Faculty 170	Roberts	Tanner Parrish
Faculty 171	Windle	Danielle Renee
Faculty 172	Hogberg	Brett Richard
Faculty 173	Artiles	Charles A.
Faculty 174	Schlueter	Andrew Harrison
Faculty 175	Willette	Jaclyn Ashley
Faculty 176	Ross	Juliet M.
<u>RVT</u> 8462	Beasley	Keely Brianna
CAET		
9909	Perez	Sylvia Ivana
9910	Dutton	G'nek Jhirel
9911	Maxson	Chandray Shari
9909 9910	Dutton	G'nek Jhirel

B. **AAVSB September 2019 Conference**– Dr. Cataldo and Dr. Stevens were given authority to attend the annual AAVSB conference in September 2019 in St.Louis, utilizing the Delegate Funding Program and as representatives of the LBVM. Mr. Vogt will also attend funded by the Board.

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Motion was made by Dr. Cataldo to go into executive session to discuss issues and receive legal advice regarding potential contested matters and personnel matters, seconded by Dr. Stevens, and passed unanimously by voice vote. Upon conclusion of discussion of the issues, motion was made to return to regular session by Dr. Cataldo, seconded by Dr. Bondurant, and approved unanimously by voice vote.

A. Board Staffing – Board members conferred upcoming staff changes and applicants for staff positions.

XI. ADJOURN

There being no further business before the Board, motion was made by Dr. Bondurant, seconded by Dr. Cataldo, and passed unanimously by voice vote to adjourn. The meeting was adjourned at 12:12 p.m.

MINUTES REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY FULL BOARD on October 3, 2019

Joseph Bondurant, Jr., DVM, Board Secretary-Treasurer